
  

 
Stayton City Council Special Session Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
October 21, 2019 

 AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
Monday, October 21, 2019 

Stayton Community Center 
400 W. Virginia Street 

Stayton, Oregon  97383 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER    7:00 PM    Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
c. City of Stayton Employees Years of Service Recognition 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
a. City Council Vacancy Appointment 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a “Request for Recognition” form on the table 
near the door. Speakers are limited to 3 minutes and must state their name and residence. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. October 7, 2019 City Council Minutes 
b. Renewal of Chemeketa Community Regional Library Service Contract 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
Wastewater Master Plan Update and Inflow and Infiltration Study and  ACTION 
Mitigation Plan Contract Award 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
b. Public Comment 
c. Council Deliberation 
d. Council Decision 
 
Ordinance No. 1040, Amending Marijuana Business Licensing Requirements ACTION 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Public Comment 
c. Council Deliberation 
d. Council Decision 

CITY COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION 
6:00 p.m. at the Stayton Community Center 

The purpose of the session is pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 
192.660.2(f), to consider information or records that are exempt by law from public 

inspection. Executive Sessions are closed to the public. 



  

 
Stayton City Council Special Session Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
October 21, 2019 

Unaudited Budget to Actual 2018-19 Fiscal Year    INFORMATIONAL 
a. Staff Report – Susannah Sbragia 
b. Public Comment 
c. Council Discussion 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCILORS 
 
 
COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Sidewalk Program 
b. Jordan Bridge Update 
c. Grant Writing – Mill Creek Park Update 
d. Facility Needs Assessment Update 

 
 

 
 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter 
for the hearing impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be 

made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations contact 
Administrative Services Manager Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 

 
 

 



  

 
Stayton City Council Special Session Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
October 21, 2019 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
OCTOBER 2019 

Monday October 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday October 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

NOVEMBER 2019 
Monday November 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday November 5 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday November 11 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF VETERAN’S DAY 
Tuesday November 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday November 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday November 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday November 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Thursday November 28 

CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY 
Friday November 29 

DECEMBER 2019 
Monday December 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday December 3 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday December 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday December 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday December 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday December 24 CITY OFFICES CLOSE AT NOON IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 

Wednesday December 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 
JANUARY 2020 

Wednesday January 1 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF NEW YEARS DAY HOLIDAY 
Monday January 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end)       
Tuesday January 7 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday January 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday January 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday January 20 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. HOLIDAY 
Tuesday January 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday January 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

FEBRUARY 2020 
Monday February 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday February 4 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday February 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday February 17 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday February 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday February 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday February 24 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
 



October 10, 2017 

To the Stayton City Council and Mayor, 

Please accept this as my letter of interest in the open City Council position. I have lived in Stayton for 
almost 14 years and my in-laws have lived here for 38 years. My wife Signe and I have two school age 
children. I actively volunteer at our kids’ school, coaching, and at our church. I have the time, family 
support, energy, and interest to serve on the City Council. I am very civic-minded and want to make the 
city a better place to live. I would like to help make the city look better. For example: revitalizing the 
downtown area,  fixing streets, East Virginia by the community center entrance for example, etc.  

I am the Operations Manager at J/K Carpet Center. This position has helped me in learning how to be a 
good leader, budgeting, problem solver, and working well with others even if we have a difference of 
opinion.  

With my knowledge and experience I am confident I would make a good addition to the City Council. 
Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Travis Woods 

456 E. Regis Street 
Stayton, OR 97383 
503-509-9415 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 1 of 5 
October 7, 2019 

City of Stayton 
City Council Work Session Minutes 

October 7, 2019 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End: 9:19 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Administrative Services Manager 
Councilor Paige Hook (excused) Keith Campbell, City Manager 
Councilor Christopher Molin  Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jordan Ohrt Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor David Patty Janna Moser, Library Director 
 Susannah Sbragia, Finance Director 
 Ty Hanlon, Interim Police Chief 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, 

Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
Councilor Patty declared ex parte contacts with Ken Carey 
regarding the Mobile Food Unit discussion but it will not 
affect his decision. 
 
Councilor Molin and Councilor Patty shared they know one 
or more of the candidates who applied for the vacant 
Council seat. 
 

Public Comments 
a. Donation to the Park Fund by Russ Strohmeyer 

 
 

b. Patti Armstrong 
 

 
Mr. Strohmeyer presented the City with a donation from the 
Stayton Summerfest Car Show in the amount of $1,000. 
 
Ms. Armstrong spoke on the resignation of the former Police 
Chief and Philips subdivision. 
 

Appointments 
a. City Council Vacancy Candidates 

 
Ben McDonald – Mr. McDonald addressed the Council 
regarding his interest in the vacant seat. 
 
Kara Blocker – Ms. Blocker addressed the Council regarding 
her interest in the vacant seat. However, Ms. Blocker does 
not live in Stayton city limits. 
 
Laura Beegle – Ms. Beegle addressed the Council regarding 
her interest in the vacant seat.  
 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 2 of 5 
October 7, 2019 

Mark Kronquist – Mr. Kronquist addressed the Council 
regarding her interest in the vacant seat.  
 

Consent Agenda 
a. September 16, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

 
Motion from Councilor Patty, seconded by Councilor Molin, 
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Motion 
passed 3:0. 
 

Public Hearing 
Ordinance No. 1037, Amending Land Use Code to 
Establish Clear and Objective Standards for Residential 
Development 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing and Opening 

Statement 
b. Staff summary 
c. Persons in favor 
d. Persons opposed 
e. Other interested persons 
f. Questions from the Council 

 
g. Staff summary 
h. Close of hearing 
i. Council deliberation 

 
 
 
 
 
 

j. Council decision on Ordinance No. 1037 
 
 
 
 
 
Ordinance No. 1038 and 1039, Establishing a Permit 
Process for Conducting Business in the Street Right-of-
Way 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing and Opening 

Statement 
 
 
 

b. Staff summary 
 
 

c. Public comment 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:23 p.m. and read the 
opening statement. 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report. 
None. 
None. 
None. 
Council question and discussion on the proposed code 
amendments. 
Mr. Fleishman provided a brief summary. 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 7:35 p.m. 
None. 
Motion from Councilor Ohrt to approve Ordinance No. 1037 
as presented. Councilor Ohrt rescinded her motion. 
 
Further Council discussion on the proposed code 
amendments. 
 
Motion from Councilor Ohrt, seconded by Councilor Patty, to 
approve Ordinance No. 1037 as presented. Motion passed 
3:0. 
 
Mayor Porter read the closing statement. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:41 p.m. and read the 
opening statement. Councilor Patty had ex parte contact 
with Ken Carey regarding this topic but it will not affect his 
decision. 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report and proposed 
ordinance options. 
 
Cari Sessums, 1501 E. Burnett, spoke in support of Ordinance 
No. 1038. 
 
Carmen Nguyen, 8684 Jackson Hill Road SE, Salem, spoke in 
support of allowing mobile food trucks to park in the right-



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 3 of 5 
October 7, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

d. Questions from the Council 
 
 
 

e. Public comment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

f. Questions from the Council 
 
 
 
 
 

of-way in limited locations. 
 
David Nielson, 2069 Cardinal Avenue, doesn’t support a 
policy change allowing food trucks in the right-of-way, and 
spoke on generator noise. 
 
James Taylor, 210 E. Water Street, suggested installing a stop 
sign at Third Avenue and Water Street to slow traffic down 
near Snow Peak. 
 
Ned Nguyen, 8684 Jackson Hill Road SE, Salem, spoke in 
support of allowing mobile food trucks to park in the right-
of-way and generator noise. 
 
Steve Poisson, 1750 E. Pine Street, inquired if there was still a 
need for Snow Peak to have mobile food trucks park in the 
right-of-way and not creating a standard for one business. 
 
Carmen Nguyen, 8684 Jackson Hill Road SE, Salem, 
responded to Mr. Poisson’s question. 
 
Council discussion of how a fee will be determined for a 
permit; enforcement of the ordinance; and the process for a 
business wanting to cancel their permit. 
 
Keith Blocker, 220 E. Ida, suggested the food trucks deliver 
the food to the restaurant. 
 
Laura Beegle, 623 Summerview Drive, suggested businesses 
have a business agreement with the mobile food trucks. 
 
Ned Nguyen, 8684 Jackson Hill Road SE, Salem, shared an 
idea for assigning specific parking spots during certain 
windows of time.  
 
Ken Carey, 1941 Kent Avenue, spoke in support of Ordinance 
No. 1039.  
 
Cari Sessums, 1501 E. Burnett Street, spoke on the 
comparison of Stayton with Portland, and her opposition of 
Ordinance No. 1039. 
 
Carmen Nguyen, 8684 Jackson Hill Road SE, Salem, 
responded to concerns shared by Ms. Sessums. 
 
Further discussion of public on-street parking; the definition 
of Mobile Food Unit; noise and trash issues. 
 
Ned Nguyen, 8684 Jackson Hill Road SE, Salem, spoke on 
control of trash issues.  
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 4 of 5 
October 7, 2019 

g. Staff summary 
 

h. Close of hearing 
 
i. Council deliberation 

 
 
 

j. Council decision on Ordinance No. 1038 or 1039 
 

Mr. Fleishman provided a brief summary. 
 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 8:46 p.m. 
 
Council discussion of the complex issue and their 
considerations in reviewing the information to make the 
right decision for the community.  
 
Motion from Councilor Patty to approve Ordinance No. 1039 
as presented. Motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Motion from Councilor Molin, seconded by Councilor Ohrt, 
to approve Ordinance No. 1038, with the modification to add 
a section allowing the business to rescind their permit prior 
to the expiration. Councilor Ohrt rescinded her second and 
Councilor Molin rescinded his motion.  
 
Motion from Councilor Molin, seconded by Councilor Ohrt, 
to approve Ordinance No. 1038, as presented.  
 
Council Discussion: Brief discussion on mobile food units. 
 
Motion passed 3:0.  
 

General Business 
Inventory of City-Owned Property 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 

 
 

b. Public Comment 
 

c. Council Discussion 

 
 
Mr. Fleishman provided a presentation of City-owned 
properties.  
 
None. 
 
Discussion on streets and surplus properties. The Council 
requested staff return with suggestions on what to do with 
the surplus properties at a future meeting.  
 

Communications from Mayor and Councilors Councilor Ohrt addressed comments from earlier in the 
evening regarding Philips Estates subdivision. Additionally, 
she spoke about the recent Coffee with the Councilor this 
past weekend. 
 
Councilor Patty thanked staff for their work on City-owned 
properties report.  
 

Communication from City Staff None. 
Future Agenda Items 
a. City of Stayton Employee Years of Service Recognition 
b. 2018-19 Fiscal Year End Presentation 
c. Sewer Master Plan – Award of Bid 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 5 of 5 
October 7, 2019 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 21ST DAY OF OCTOBER 2019, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Administrative Services Manager 

 

 



 
Monthly Library Report  Page 1 of 1  
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Janna Moser - Library Director 
 
DATE:   October 21, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  Renewal of Chemeketa Community Regional Library Service  

Contract 
  
 
ISSUE 
CCRLS contract renewal. 
 
ENCLOSURES 

• Intergovernmental Agreement-Contract #10426701  
• Attachment A; Exhibit 1 to Attachment A, Attachment B 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
CCRLS was formed in 1973 to support library services in the tri-county area, with its service 
boundaries the same as those of Chemeketa Community College. All residents of the service 
district currently pay approximately $.08 per thousand to CCRLS services. From those tax dollars 
an annual reimbursement is provided to member libraries based 50% on the assessed valuation 
of property in the local service area and 50% on the number of items circulated to non-
residents in addition to the services outlined below.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Disbursement to the Stayton Public Library of $96,922 for FY2019-20. 
Quarterly reimbursements for net lending at $1.50 per item.  
Continued participation in the Cooperative which provides these services at no additional 
charge: 

• SirsiDynix Symphony (the Integrated Library System) 
• Patron access to over 2 million items 
• Online resources, databases, e-books, and audiobooks 
• RFID technology, equipment and supplies 
• Courier service 5 days a week 
• Fiber optic internet connection, network support and security 
• Computers - six OPACS, five circulation computers and two self-checkout stations 
• Scanners and thermal receipt printers 
• Reimbursement for materials lost by non-Stayton patrons 



 
Monthly Library Report  Page 2 of 2  
 

• Envisionware PC reservation system, additional software and licensing 
• Training and mileage reimbursement to trainings and meetings  
• Original cataloging for materials 
• E-commerce  

 
OPTIONS 
Approve, deny or direct modification of the proposed agreement 
        
MOTION(S) 
N/A Included as a consent agenda item 
 























AWARD OF CONTRACT 
Wastewater Master Plan Update and 
Inflow and Infiltration Study and Mitigation Plan 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

THRU: Keith Campbell, City Manager 

FROM: Lance S. Ludwick, P.E.  Public Works Director 

DATE: October 21st, 2019 

SUBJECT: Wastewater Master Plan Update and Inflow and 
 Infiltration Study and Mitigation Plan Contract Award 
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is the award of contract for the Wastewater Master Plan Update 
and Inflow and Infiltration Study and Mitigation Plan to Keller Associates. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Wastewater Master Plan (WWMP) Update and Inflow and Infiltration (I & I) Study and 
Mitigation Plan will include a detailed analysis of current conditions and future needs, 
recommendations to meet these needs, and cost estimates for the recommended improvements. 
The consultant will focus their review on the wastewater treatment plant, lift stations and 
collection systems and private service laterals. 
 
The project was advertised competitively on August 26, 2019, in the Daily Journal of 
Commerce.  The City of Stayton received two (2) sealed bids by the bid closing deadline of 
September 26th, 2019, one from Jacobs Engineering Group of Portland, Oregon and one from 
Keller Associates of Salem, Oregon. 
 
The City has experienced steady growth over the past several decades but growth has substantially 
slowed during the past twelve years.  The current WWMP was completed in 2005 and adopted in 
2006, and was produced during a time of more substantial growth and assumed that growth would 
continue.  The plan includes a number of recommendations that no longer seem necessary or 
feasible for construction within a 20-year planning horizon.  
 
The City updated its Comprehensive Plan in 2013, with a revised Comprehensive Plan Map adopted 
at that time.  The assumptions for development patterns included within the 2006 WWMP are no 
longer in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan Map.   



AWARD OF CONTRACT 
Wastewater Master Plan Update and 
Inflow and Infiltration Study and Mitigation Plan 

Updating the City’s Master Plans has been a City Council Goal since 2015-2016. During the most 
recent City Council Retreat, the City Council provided staff with a goal to “Develop a Capital 
Improvement Plan.” Completing updates to the sewer, water, stormwater and parks master plans 
was identified as a goal to strive for in the 3-4 year range. The Wastewater Master Plan was 
selected as the next plan to update. 
 
The objective of the WWMP update is to develop working documents for planning, programming, 
and financing improvements to the community’s wastewater plant and collection system.    
 
Project objectives include: 
 

A. The Consultant shall update the flow and loads quantities to the wastewater treatment 
plant based on population growth projections up to 20 years into the future and provide 
a conditional assessment of the plant. The consultant shall also determine what the 
plant needs to manage the anticipated flows. The consultant shall evaluate up to three 
(3) alternatives for any proposed changes / projects at the WWTP and provide 
associated costs for each alternative.  

B. The 2020 Master Plan Update will need to include an evaluation of the collection system 
and lift stations based on updated flow data. The WWMP shall include Priority 1- 4 
projects and future lower priority projects based on population growth projections up to 
20 years into the future. A summary sheet describing each proposed capital 
improvement shall be provided in the final document; to include the associated costs for 
each of the collection system improvements. The consultant shall also determine the 
percentage project costs due to growth.  

C. The Consultant shall perform an Inflow and Infiltration (I and I) Study of the City’s 
sanitary sewer collection system, including private service laterals. It is assumed the 
selected consultant will place flow meters at strategic locations throughout the system 
to help locate problem areas of I and I and propose alternate mitigation plans to remedy 
the issues. Cost for the mitigation alternatives shall also be derived and provided in the 
final WWMP update document.  

D. Additional areas that will need to be addressed in the WWTP Update:  

1. Vulnerability Analysis of Wastewater Treatment Plant 
2. Redundancy in the WWTP System 
3. Future permit changes/requirements 
4. Outfall erosion/capacity 

 
The City received two (2) proposals for the master plan consulting services. Jacobs Engineering 
Group (Jacobs) of Portland, Oregon and Keller Associates (Keller) of Salem, Oregon both 
submitted proposals that met the minimal qualifications for performing the services requested. 
Staff has experience working with both consultants. 
 
 
 



AWARD OF CONTRACT 
Wastewater Master Plan Update and 
Inflow and Infiltration Study and Mitigation Plan 

City staff formed a committee to review and score the proposals independently. The scoring 
criterion was outlined in the RFP and is shown below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Below is a compilation of the six (6) reviewer scores combined into one overall score.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
After reviewing the scores and discussing the proposals in detail, the group recommended the 
City move forward with negotiating a contract with Keller to perform the work. Staff met with 
Keller to discuss the scope of work and to negotiate financial compensation for the work. Keller 

 
CONTENT AND 
EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 
MAXIMUM 

SCORE 
 
1. Introductory letter 

 
5 

 
2. Key personnel qualifications 

 
40 

 
3. Project scope and understanding 

 
40 

 
4. Project schedule (11” x 17” allowed) 

 
10 

 
5. Additional supporting information 

 
5 

 
TOTALS 

 
100 



AWARD OF CONTRACT 
Wastewater Master Plan Update and 
Inflow and Infiltration Study and Mitigation Plan 

and staff met with the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) to confirm that the scope of 
work negotiated would meet the DEQ requirements for a master plan update as specified in the 
document titled “Preparing Wastewater Planning Documents and Environmental Reports for 
Public Utilities Financed by Business Oregon, Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, Rural 
Community Assistance Corporation or the United States Department of Agriculture.”  This 
document outlines the requirements for a planning master plan if a loan from one of these 
agencies would be used for capital improvements. The DEQ representative stated the master 
plan document as proposed by Keller would meet the referenced criteria.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The estimated fee to complete the Wastewater Master Plan Update and Inflow and Infiltration 
Mitigation Study is $350,000.  There was $175,000 allocated for the Wastewater System Master 
Plan Update and Inflow and Infiltration Mitigation Study in the 2019-2020 budget. There will 
need to be $175,000 allocated to the Wastewater System Master Plan Update and Inflow and 
Infiltration Mitigation Study in the 2020-2021 budget to complete the work.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

City Staff reviewed and scored the proposals submitted by Jacobs and Keller for the 
Wastewater Master Plan Update and Inflow and Infiltration Mitigation Study and 
recommends the City award the contract to Keller Associates at this time. 
 
OPTIONS 

1) Award of Contract to Keller Associates for the contract amount of $350,000. 
 

2) Reject all bids. 
          
MOTION 

Move to award the Wastewater Master Plan Update and Inflow and Infiltration Mitigation Study 
contract to Keller Associates in the amount of $350,000. 















































CITY OF STAYTON

Wastewater Master Plan Update

Engineer Fee Estimate 10/15/2019

Task Description  P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l

 J
a

m
e

s
 B

le
d

s
o

e

 P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

 P
e

te
r 

O
ls

e
n

 T
e

c
h

 A
d

v
is

o
r 

/ 
Q

C

 S
e

n
io

r 
E

n
g

in
e

e
r

 J
W

, 
E

R
, 
H

J
, 
G

H

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 L

e
a

d

 E
F

 S
ta

ff
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r

 A
C

A
D

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
ff

 D
ir

e
c
t 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

 T
a

s
k
 L

a
b

o
r 

C
o

s
t

Comments

Composite Rates $195 $175 $225 $180 $130 $105 $95 $75

1 Project Management 

General project administration 6 40 12 $9,070 Assumes 12 month project duration

Monthly project updates 6 6 $1,500

Project schedule 1 8 $1,595
Task Total 7 54 0 0 0 0 0 18 $12,165

2 TAC/CAC Project Meetings

Kickoff meeting 1 6 6 5 2 350$        $3,475

TAC meetings 3 30 16 25 6 700$        $13,115 Assumes 5 TAC meetings

Sewer committee meetings 12 8 12 6 $5,550 Assumes 3 meetings

Task Total 4 48 0 30 42 0 0 14 $22,140

3 Data Collection & Conditions Assessment

Field facility tour 4 6 4 $2,300 Coordinate with kickoff mtg

Physical conditions assessment of existing facilities 2 6 4 32 24 $11,220 Excludes Gardner LS (to be abandoned)

RFIs 0.5 2 2 2 1 $1,143

Flow monitoring (6 sites) 1 12 96 4,500$     $19,275 $750/meter, plus labor.  City to do confined space entry

Identify survey spot check locations 0.5 1 2 $533 Assumes City to survey spot check locations

Identify CCTV locations 0.5 4 6 $1,578

CCTV review of reports 6 24 2 $4,320 City to provide summary NASSCO reports, linked to GIS

Night-time flow monitoring (2 people, 2 nights) 1 8 40 $6,795 Labor includes processing data

Smoke testing (1 person, 1 week) 8 48 4 400$        $8,340
Task Total 5.5 51 4 40 246 0 0 7 $55,503

4 Planning Criteria

Growth projections, distribution, landuse, study area 0.5 4 10 18 4 $4,368

Flow analysis, design flows, and projections 0.5 4 12 24 $4,878

Wastewater loadings 2 2 12 30 $6,110 City to provide data in spreadsheet format

Regulatory and planning criteria summary 0.5 2 1 16 6 $4,333

Draft write-up 1 3 4 4 8 2 $2,950
Task Total 2.5 15 3 32 32 80 4 2 $22,638

5 Treatment Plant Evaluation (Existing System)

Hydraulics modeling 1 2 4 15 30 $7,295

Process modeling 1 4 4 40 20 $11,095

Vulnerability assessment update 1 4 8 36 6 $6,565

Outfall evaluation 2 6 4 $1,850 Compares flows to design conditions and mixing study

Document WWTP existing conditions 1 4 8 8 2 $3,325
4 16 8 77 0 98 0 8 $30,130

6 Collection System Evaluation (Existing System)

Update existing model network 2 1 6 32 1,500$     $6,170 Includes $1500 software maintenance fee

Update existing loads to model 0.5 2 1 12 40 $6,388 Dry plus wet weather loads

Model calibration 0.5 3 3 12 60 $9,023

Existing system evaluation 1 2 2 8 24 $4,465

Allocate future loads to existing model 0.5 2 1 8 28 $4,608

Future system evaluation (w/o improvements) 0.5 2 2 8 $1,548

Draft write-up 2 3 4 20 8 2 $4,445
Task Total 5 16 0 8 52 212 8 2 $36,645

7 I/I Study

Analyize data (pump run, flow meter, etc.) 1 4 20 160 $20,295

Collection system conditions prioritization 0.5 4 26 60 2 $10,628

Estimate I/I reductions 1 8 20 $4,195

Planning level cost estimates 4 1 1 16 $3,185

O&M and I/I program recommendations 2 6 2 24 $4,920 Includes recommendations for private laterals

Draft write-up 1 4 1 30 2 $5,125
5.5 30 1 4 136 220 0 4 $48,348

8 Develop Recommended Collection System Alternatives

Evaluate alternatives to correct existing deficiencies 1 12 4 20 50 $10,865

Phasing by priority and planning level costs 0.5 3 4 16 $2,823

Draft write-up 1 2 1 4 24 2 $3,960
Task Total 2.5 17 1 4 28 90 0 2 $17,648

9 Develop Recommended Treatment Plant Improvement Alternatives

Redundancy / vulnerability costs 1 4 4 10 20 $5,695

Development of alternatives 1 2 2 16 40 2,000$     $10,075 Kennedy Jenks

Alternatives analysis 1 2 4 40 40 2,000$     $14,845 Kennedy Jenks

Biosolids evaluation 1 4 6 40 6,000$     $12,175 Kennedy Jenks

Phasing based on I/I reductions 1 4 16 16 $5,455

Preferred alternative phasing and cost estimating 1 4 16 16 $5,455

Document WWTP recommended improvements 1 4 8 8 4 $3,475
Task Total 7 24 10 112 0 180 0 4 $57,175

10 Capital Improvement Plan

Summary CIP table 0.5 1 2 4 $1,153

6-year CIP phasing 0.5 1 0.5 6 $1,165

O&M budget impacts 1 1 8 7 $2,750

Project summary sheets (up to 20) 0.5 2 1 10 10 $3,773

Draft write-up 1 2 16 2 $2,775
Task Total 2.5 7 2.5 20 43 0 0 2 $11,615

11a Plan Documentation

Compile final report sections 8 4 4 16 8 150$        $5,070

Executive summary 1 2 1 2 4 16 2 $3,480

Assemble appendix materials 2 4 8 2 $1,860
Task Total 1 12 1 6 12 40 0 12 $10,410

11b Adoption

Council meetings 1 12 8 6 $3,785 Assumes two mtgs

Planning commission meeting 5 4 2 $1,545 Assumes one mtg

DEQ review and respond to questions 1 4 2 8 8 $3,825

Final approved documents / deliverables 4 4 16 6 400$        $4,350
Task Total 2 25 2 12 36 0 0 14 $13,505

Sub-Total $337,920

12 Contingency Reserve

Contingency Reserve $12,080

Total $350,000









































 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Ty Hanlon, Interim Police Chief 
  Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development  

 DATE: October 21, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance 1040 Amending Marijuana Business Licensing 
Requirements 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is consideration of an ordinance amending the licensing 
regulations for marijuana businesses. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Ordinances 987 and 988 established and amended a local licensing requirement for any 
business handling marijuana in 2015.  These regulations were enacted into Chapter 5.12 of the 
Stayton Municipal Code.  The Code defines marijuana and five different types of marijuana 
facilities: producer, processor, wholesaler, retailer and medical dispensary. The Code requires 
an annual license to be issued by the City for each type of business, background checks for all 
employees of the business and establishes location and operational standards. 

The current standards were enacted shortly after the referendum legalizing recreational 
marijuana and before the state’s program licensing the recreational industry were operational.  
There was concern at that time about the proliferation of recreational marijuana and the 
impacts on the community.  The City now has four years of experience and has seen little 
negative impact from the marijuana businesses in the City. 

The locational standards, as currently enacted, apply to all marijuana businesses.  They require 
a marijuana business to be located at least 1,000 feet from a school (as do state rules), at least 
1,000 feet from another marijuana business, and at least 200 feet from a residence, with some 
exceptions.  The locational standards, when combined with the City’s zoning, would allow for 
no more than four marijuana businesses within the City. 

There have been two marijuana businesses licensed the City.  One business is no longer 
operating.  A third business is expected to be licensed in the coming months.  The Stayton 
Police Department has experienced no issues associated with the marijuana retail business on 
N Third Ave. 



 
 

In December 2018, the US Congress enacted the 2018 Farm Bill, which created a definition of 
hemp and removed hemp as a controlled substance under federal law.  Hemp is defined as a 
cannabis plants and its byproducts with a level of the psychoactive ingredient of 0.3% or less. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

The amendments proposed by staff would bring the City’s definition of marijuana into 
conformity with the federal Controlled Substance Act, by defining hemp and exempting hemp 
from the definition of marijuana; would apply the 1,000 foot separation requirement only 
between marijuana retail facilities; and would remove the 200 foot separation from residences.  
The proposed amendments would continue to allow no more than four marijuana retailers 
within the City, but remove restrictions on the number of producers, processors, or 
wholesalers. 

The Ordinance also inserts a section into the Chapter of the Municipal Code regarding odor 
control.  This provision would make it a nuisance to produce a strong and offensive odor at any 
property in the City and requires businesses to use air filtration systems to contain odors on the 
premises. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends enactment of Ordinance 1040 as presented. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1040 

Move to approve Ordinance 1040 as presented. 
The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance 1040 is enacted and will be presented to the 
Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance 1040 will be brought before the Council for a second consideration at 
the November 4, 2019 meeting.  

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance 1040 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 
Council for a second consideration. 
The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 1040 will be brought before the 
Council for a second consideration at its November 4, 2019 meeting.  

3. Retain the Code unchanged 

No motion is necessary.  

 



  

 
Ordinance 1040, Amending Marijuana Facility Licensing Regulations Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1040 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MARIJUANA BUSINESS 
REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF STAYTON 

 WHEREAS, Ordinances 987 and 988 established and amended Chapter 5.12 of the 
Stayton Municipal Code, establishing a licensing system for and restricting the permissible 
locations of marijuana facilities; 

WHEREAS, the City now has four years of experience with marijuana businesses located 
within the City and the Stayton Police Department reports relatively few issues associated with 
those businesses;   

 WHEREAS, the 2018 Farm Bill, enacted by the Congress of the United States 
distinguished between hemp and marijuana, removing hemp from the federal Controlled 
Substances Act; 

 WHEREAS, hemp processing facilities have the potential to create offensive odors; 

 WHEREAS, the Stayton Municipal Code regarding Nuisances does not currently 
establish controls on odor;  

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton desires to maintain reasonable time, place and manner 
restrictions on marijuana businesses in order protect the public health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens of Stayton; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds the amends enacted by this Ordinance to be 
reasonable. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  Stayton Municipal Code Chapter 5.12 is hereby amended to read as set forth in 
Exhibit A, attached hereto as incorporated herein. 

Section 2.  Stayton Municipal Code Section 8.04.055 is hereby enacted as follows: 

8.04.055 ODOR 

No owner or person in charge of property shall conduct an activity which produces a 
strong and offensive odor perceptible off of the premises.  A business is required to 
utilize air filtration which, to the greatest extent feasible, confines all objectionable odors 
associated with the facility to the premises.  For the purpose of this provision, the 
standard for judging “objectionable odors” shall be that of an average, reasonable person 
with ordinary sensibilities after taking into consideration the character of the 
neighborhood in which the odor is made and the odor is detected. 

Section 3.  Upon enactment by the Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing, this Ordinance 
shall become effective 30 days after the date of signing. 



  

 
Ordinance 1040, Amending Marijuana Facility Licensing Regulations Page 2 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 21st day of October, 2019. 
 
 CITY OF STAYTON 

 

Signed: ____________, 2019 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A Porter, Mayor 

 

Signed: ____________, 2019 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, City Manager



  

 
Exhibit A, Ordinance 1040 

Page 1 

CHAPTER 5.12 
MARIJUANA FACILITIES 

 
SECTIONS 

5.12.010  Purpose 
5.12.020 Definitions 
5.12.030 Licensing 
5.12.040 Location and Hours of Operation 
5.12.050 Facility and Security 
5.12.060 Product and Usage 
5.12.070 Enforcement 
5.12.080  Severability 

 
5.12.010 PURPOSE 

A. This Chapter provides regulations that supplement the Oregon Revised Statutes 
(ORS), and administrative rules of the Oregon Health Authority’s Medical 
Marijuana Program (OHA) and the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC), 
for the purpose of protecting the citizens and businesses of Stayton regarding 
marijuana matters. 

B. Certification and licensing by the State of Oregon is not a guarantee that a 
marijuana facility is permitted to operate under applicable local municipal 
regulations. All facilities shall comply with the regulations set forth in this 
Chapter, Title 17, and other applicable provision of this Code. 

5.12.020 DEFINITIONS 
For the purposes of this Chapter, any word or phrase defined by the Oregon Revised 
Statutes or an administrative rule of the Oregon Health Authority or Oregon Liquor 
Control Commission and not defined below shall have the same meaning as defined by 
statute or rule; otherwise, the following words and phrases mean: 
FINANCIAL INTEREST:  A financial interest exists when a person, the person’s 
immediate family, or legal entity to which the person is a principal (1) receives or is 
entitled to receive directly or indirectly any of the profits of the enterprise; (2) rents or 
leases real property to the operator for use by the business; (3) rents or leases personal 
property to the operator for a commercially unreasonable rate; or (4) lends or gives 
money, real property, or personal property to the operator for use in the business. 
HEMP:  the plant Cannabis sativa L. and any part of that plant, including the seeds 
thereof and all derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts, and salts of 
isomers, whether growing or not, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of 
not more than 0.3 percent on a dry weight basis. 



  

 
Exhibit A, Ordinance 1040 

Page 2 

INSPECTION, FORMAL:  A scheduled inspection of the facilities, its owners, or 
operators to insure compliance with state and local regulations. This may include but not 
limited to owner and employee background checks, police reports, product inspection, 
security inspections, sales tracking procedures, financial, operational and facility 
information, payroll reports, and interviews with staff. 
INSPECTION, INFORMAL:  An unscheduled “walk through” of the facility to ensure 
compliance and assist with the safety of the public and the facility staff.  Informal 
inspections should not interfere with day to day business unless an immediate issue needs 
to be addressed. 
MARIJUANA:  All parts of the plant of the Cannabis (Moraceae) family sativa L, 
whether growing or not,; the seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; 
and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the such 
plant, or its seeds or resin, as may be defined by Oregon Revised Statutes.  It does not 
include hemp or the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil or cake 
made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, derivative 
mixture or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted therefrom), fiber, 
oil, cake or the sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable of germination. 
MARIJUANA FACILITY: Any facility or business that dispenses, sells, gives, 
wholesales, produces, or processes either medical or recreational marijuana pursuant to 
Oregon Revised Statute. 
MARIJUANA PROCESSING SITE:  Location where processing of marijuana occurs.  
MARIJUANA PROCESSOR:  A person who processes marijuana. 
MARIJUANA PRODUCER:   A person who produces marijuana. 
MARIJUANA RETAILER:  A person who sells marijuana items to a consumer. 
MARIJUANA WHOLESALER:  A person who provides marijuana items for resale to a 
retailer. 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY: A business which sells medical marijuana 
products. 
OPERATOR:  The person who is the proprietor of a facility, whether in the capacity of 
company principal, owner, lessee, sub-lessee, mortgagee in possession, licensee or any 
other capacity.  If the operator is a corporation, the term operator also includes its officers 
and each and every member of the corporation’s board of directors whose directorship 
occurs in a period during which the facility is in operation.  If the operator is a 
partnership or limited liability company, the term operator also includes each and every 
member thereof whose membership occurs in a period during which the facility is in 
operation. 
PROCESSES:  The processing, compounding or conversion of marijuana into marijuana 
products or marijuana extracts; The processing, compounding, or conversion of 
marijuana either directly or indirectly by extraction from substances of natural origin or 
independently by means of chemical syntheses or by a combination of extraction an 
chemical synthesis; the packaging or repackaging of marijuana items or the labeling or 
relabeling of any package or container of marijuana items.  



  

 
Exhibit A, Ordinance 1040 

Page 3 

PRODUCES: The manufacture, planting, cultivation, growing, or harvesting of 
marijuana. 
RETAIL MARIJUANA FACILITY:  A business that sells recreational use marijuana 
products to the consumer. 

5.12.030 LICENSING 
A. No person shall establish, maintain or operate a marijuana facility within the City 

unless a City of Stayton Marijuana Facility license for that use is obtained from 
the City.  The Stayton Police Chief shall issue a Facility License if the applicant 
fulfills all requirements of this Title. 

B. Each facility must continue to be licensed/registered and in good standing as an 
Oregon Marijuana Facility pursuant to state law. 

C. No facility or person will be issued a City license without proof of liability 
insurance for the facility, with coverage of not less than one million dollars per 
occurrence and two million dollars aggregate.  The City may increase this 
minimum requirement under special circumstances that may cause an increase in 
risk such as, but not limited to, building location in relation to another business or 
property. 

D. Facility License Term:  Each facility must renew the City of Stayton marijuana 
business license each year. Facility licenses shall be issued on a calendar year 
basis for a term of one year or portion thereof beginning upon the date of approval 
of the original application.   All facility licenses shall expire on December 31st of 
the year issued.  If a licensee intends to continue to operate during the following 
license year, not less than thirty days prior to the license expiration, the licensee 
shall complete a license renewal application and pay the annual license fee.  A 
facility’s license shall not be sold, assigned, mortgaged or otherwise transferred.  

E. Criminal background checks will be performed by the City on facility operators, 
entity company principals, employees, volunteers of a facility, or those who have 
a financial interest in the facility.  Criminal background checks will be performed 
on the applicants in the original application and each renewal application as 
allowed by Oregon Revised Statute.  

F. Facility License Fee:  Upon submission of an original application for a marijuana 
facility license, the applicant shall submit a non-refundable application 
background investigation fee and the annual marijuana facility license fee as set 
by Council resolution.  If an applicant applies for a marijuana facility license after 
July 1st, the annual license fee shall be reduced by one-half for the remaining 
portion of the first license year.  The background investigation fee will not be 
reduced. The background investigation fee will be set based on the number of 
employees/staff as a criminal history check will be conducted on each employee. 
No portion of the license fee or background investigation fee is refundable in the 
event the operation of the facility is discontinued for any reason. 

G. The facility owner/operator shall notify the City and provide information for any 
new employees or volunteers throughout the year.  A background investigative 
fee will be collected on each new employee or volunteer. 



  

 
Exhibit A, Ordinance 1040 

Page 4 

H. The application for a license must include the information necessary for 
background checks of a criminal record of any and all owner(s), manager(s), 
operator(s), employee(s), agent(s), or volunteer(s). The City of Stayton will 
conduct all necessary background checks prior to issuing a facility license. 

I. The City shall deny a license if any facility operators, company principals, 
employees, volunteers of a facility, or those who have a financial interest in the 
facility do not meet the requirements set by the State of Oregon or if they meet the 
requirements for denial.  In addition, the person may not have been convicted for 
the following crimes in the past 5 years: 
1. Felony Person Crimes 
2. Misdemeanors related to drug charges 
3. Driving Under the Influence of Intoxicants 
4. Crimes of Fraud and Deceit  

J. Once the facility is licensed, the licensee must notify the City, remit the 
appropriate investigation fee, and submit necessary information for background 
checks of a criminal record of any new owner, manager, operator, employee, 
agent, or volunteer. Failing to update the City accordingly may result in a fine 
and/or revocation of the license. 

K. The City may deny an initial application or renewal license due to background 
checks of owners and employees, et.al, failure to comply with State laws and 
regulations, previous violations of the SMC 8.20 Chronic Nuisance Property, or 
failure to comply with SMC Title 17.  

L. If the City chooses to deny the approval of a facility license, the applicant will be 
sent a certified letter of denial stating the reason for the denial. Denial of an initial 
license application may be appealed to the Administrator within 30 days of 
receiving the reason for denial.  The Administrator’s decision is the City’s final 
administrative decision. 

M. The marijuana facility will be given 60 days from the date of denial to correct the 
reason for the initial application denial if correction is possible. 

N. The license authorized by the City shall be displayed in a manner visible to 
persons conducting business in the facility. 

O. Each facility must allow reasonable scheduled formal inspections during the 
annual license renewal process or for reported issues.  Without reducing or 
waiving any provisions of this Chapter, the Stayton Police Department shall have 
the same access to the facility, its records, and its operation as allowed to State 
inspectors. Denial or interference with access shall be grounds for revocation or 
suspension of the facility license. 

P. Each facility must allow for reasonable informal inspections at any time. 
Q. Each facility must comply with all State or local laws and regulations including, 

but not limited to, building and fire codes, including payment of all fines, fees, 
and taxes owing to the City. 



  

 
Exhibit A, Ordinance 1040 

Page 5 

5.12.040 LOCATION AND HOURS OF OPERATION 
A. No marijuana facility retailer may be located within 1,000 feet of another 

marijuana facilityretailer. Distances between facilities will be calculated from the 
closest point with respect to property lot lines. 

B. No marijuana facility may be located within 200 feet from any residence. 
Distances from the facility to a residence will be measured from that portion of 
the building occupied by the facility and the residence.  However, if the residence 
is an apartment within a Commercial, Industrial or Downtown zone, as described 
in Chapter 17.16, and is part of an existing mixed-use structure such as a second 
story apartment above a business, or is part of a residential development 
occupancy of which is restricted to persons 55 or older, the facility is not required 
to be more than 200 feet from the residence. 

C.B. Marijuana facilities may not be located within 1,000 feet of a public or private 
school. A school is one described by ORS, OLCC, and OHA.  Distances from the 
facility to a school will be calculated from the closest point with respect to 
property lot lines.  However, if a school moves to within a 1,000 feet of a pre-
existing marijuana facility, the facility is not required to move unless the facility 
changes ownership. 

D.C. The hours of operation for a Medical Marijuana Dispensary or Retail Marijuana 
Facility Retailer may not be outside of 9am to 7pm. 

5.12.050 FACILITY AND SECURITY 
A. A mMarijuana facilityies are  is required to utilize air filtration which, to the 

greatest extent feasible, confines all objectionable odors associated with the 
facility to the premises. For the purpose of this provision, the standard for judging 
“objectionable odors” shall be that of an average, reasonable person with ordinary 
sensibilities after taking into consideration the character of the neighborhood in 
which the odor is made and the odor is detected. 

B. All marijuana products, including refrigerated products, must be kept in a secure 
and locked storage unit including refrigerated products. 

C. Marijuana facilities must provide for secure disposal of marijuana remnants or by-
products; such remnants or by-products shall not be placed within the facility’s 
exterior refuse containers. 

D. No loitering is allowed outside of the facility within 15 feet of the entrance of the 
facility.  

E. Alarm systems must have a City of Stayton permit in accordance with SMC Title 
8. 

F. Marijuana facilities may not use or implement any type of device or apparatus 
that is designed to injure, maim, or kill by the contact of any person with any 
string, wire, rod, stick, spring, or other contrive affixed to it or connected with it 
or with its trigger for the purpose of activating the device including, but not 
limited to, any spring gun or set gun as prohibited by law. 



  

 
Exhibit A, Ordinance 1040 

Page 6 

G. If security officers are used for marijuana facility security they must be certified 
through the Oregon Department of Public Safety Standards and Training and 
registered with the Stayton Police Department. 

H. All criminal incidents, whether attempted or actual, must be reported to the 
Stayton Police Department as soon as they occur or as soon as they are 
discovered. 

5.12.060 PRODUCT AND USAGE 
A. No marijuana products may be consumed on the facility’s premises in any form 

including persons with medical cards. 
B. No person under the age of 21 may be present on the premises at any time.  

Exception:  OLCC/OHA and/or Stayton Police underage decoy persons may be 
on the premise for the purpose of compliance checks. 

C. No marijuana products may be sold or given to a person under the age of 21. 
D. No marijuana products may be sold or given to an individual knowing the product 

will be sold or given to a person who does not have a Oregon Medical Marijuana 
Program card or is under the age of 21 or used in violation of State law. 

E. All sales or transfers of marijuana products must occur completely inside the 
marijuana facility building. 

F. No marijuana sales or transfers may be conducted through a “drive up” or “walk 
up” window service. 

G. Items used or designed specifically for using, smoking, ingesting, inhaling, or 
processing of marijuana such as pipes, bongs, vaporizers, etc. may only be sold in 
a licensed marijuana retail facility or medical marijuana dispensary. 

H. Cannabinoid extract products may only be produced in an Oregon State licensed 
facility in an industrial zone as described in SMC Chapter 17.16. 

I. Cannabinoid concentrates may only be produced following State statute or rules.  
5.12.070 ENFORCEMENT 

A. The Stayton Chief of Police or designee is charged with the enforcement of the 
provisions of this Chapter. 

B. As part of investigation of a crime or violation of ORS or this Chapter, which law 
enforcement officials reasonably suspect has taken place on the premises of the 
facility, the Stayton Police shall be allowed to view surveillance video or digital 
records at any reasonable time. 

C. Violations of this Chapter are punishable by a fine set by City Council resolution.  
Fines for violations of this Title may be based per violation or per day the facility 
is out of compliance and continues to operate.  For example if an employee is 
fined for consuming product on the premises, that person may receive a one-time 
fine for the violation.  If the facility operates without a license it may be fined per 
day that it continues to operate without being in compliance. 



  

 
Exhibit A, Ordinance 1040 

Page 7 

D. For non-safety issue violations the facility may be allowed up to 10 days to 
become compliant before a fine may be declared. 

E. The Stayton Chief of Police has the authority to revoke the a facility license based 
on serious or continued uncorrected violations of the SMCthis Chapter.  If the 
license is revoked, a report shall be submitted to the Stayton Municipal Court.  On 
application of the affected party, a revocation hearing shall be held at the 
Municipal Court within 30 days.  The Municipal Court Judge shall rule whether to 
uphold the revocation or reinstate the license.  A report shall then be submitted to 
the OLCC/OHA notifying them of the status of the facility. After the initial 
revocation hearing and within the current license year, the facility owner/operator 
may request an additional hearing with the Municipal Court Judge to show they 
have corrected the violation(s) for which the license was revoked.  The Municipal 
Court Judge may then rule as to whether the license may be reinstated or continue 
to be revoked.  If the facility requests reinstatement after the current licensing 
year, it shall re-apply for a new license after a reinstatement hearing.  The 
Municipal Court Judge ruling is the final decision of the City. 

F. The City is not responsible for any loss, including financial loss due to a 
revocation or denial of a facility license. 

5.12.080 SEVERABILITY 
If any provision(s) of this Chapter or its application to any person or circumstance is held 
invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of this Chapter that 
can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Chapter are severable. 



 
Unaudited Budget to Actual 2018-19 Fiscal year  Page 1 of 1  
October 21, 2019 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Susannah Sbragia, Finance Director 
 
DATE: October 21, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Unaudited Budget to Actual 2018-19 Fiscal year 
  
 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATE 

These are key financial highlights of the unaudited budget to actual for the fiscal year 2018-19, 
along with comparison of 2017-18 prior year actuals. 
 
REVENUE ASSUMPTIONS 

The year-end total revenue ended 5% under budget. The two key factors resulting in this 
decrease were (1) the intergovernmental CDBG grant actual revenue received was $322,000 
under budget and (2) the charge for services in the contract with the City of Sublimity. Actual 
revenue received was under budget by $341,370. The budget for the City of Sublimity was based 
on two sewer projects for the Wastewater Treatment Plant that were not completed this year.  
 
EXPENDITURE ASSUMPTIONS 

Overall, year-end expenditures were under-spent in each department, resulting in total actual 
expenditures being about 20% under budget. The exception to this is the budget for the Mayor 
and City Council, which was overspent by $2,350 due to additional training needed for new 
Council members.  
 
SUMMARY 

This is the beginning of financial updates to the Council. My commitment is for the Finance 
Department to provide timely, accurate, clear, and complete information to the Council 
members and citizens of Stayton to keep them informed of the financial status of the City 
throughout the year.  
 
These reports are a work in progress. I would appreciate feedback from the Council members on 
this report which will allow me to improve future reports and ensure I am providing information 
that is relevant, clear, and easy to understand. 
 
MOTION(S) 
Informational no approval. 



17-18 YTD 18-19 YTD YE Budget Difference

Beginning Fund Balance $9,662,649 $10,693,618 $10,434,192 $259,426

Taxes $2,588,475 $2,693,115 $2,642,200 $50,915
Franchise Fees $822,322 $824,482 $863,600 ($39,118)
Charge for Services $5,779,335 $5,771,931 $6,158,800 ($386,869)
License, Permits Fees $42,533 $47,504 $33,500 $14,004
Intergovernmental $920,917 $1,437,056 $1,745,300 ($308,244)
Interest & Fees $551,684 $611,203 $469,600 $141,603
Total Revenue Received $10,705,266 $11,385,292 $11,913,000 ($527,708)

Expenditures 17-18 YTD 18-19 YTD YE Budget % Spent*
General Fund

Administration $1,608,212 $1,707,429 $2,102,500 81%
Police $2,261,555 $2,214,445 $2,339,100 95%
Planning $183,927 $265,372 $267,600 99%
Community Center $60,665 $41,562 $58,300 71%
Court $99,022 $71,205 $75,500 94%
Street Lighting $112,822 $102,907 $116,500 88%
Mayor City Council $13,590 $29,350 $27,000 109%
Total General Fund $4,339,792 $4,432,270 $4,986,500 89%

Public Works Admin

Operations $464,778 $450,340 $485,500 93%
Library Fund

Operations $489,929 $442,942 $546,100 81%
Parks Fund

Operations $245,037 $221,563 $373,800 59%
Parks SDC $25,000 $155,000 $155,000 100%
Water Fund

Operations $1,594,783 $2,464,418 $2,510,400 98%
Water SDC $21,791 $0 $270,000 0%
Storm Water Fund

Operations $237,966 $198,250 $277,500 71%
Storm SDC $57,214 $66,825 $100,000 67%
Sewer Fund

Operations $2,571,518 $3,091,561 $4,246,250 73%
Sewer SDC $0 $0 $593,000 0%
Street Fund

Operations $780,360 $1,019,739 $1,290,100 79%
Street SDC $159,684 $0 $269,000 0%
Facilities Fund

Maintenance $111,407 $110,159 $137,700 80%
Pool Fund

Operations $313,449 $363,010 $409,600 89%
^ does not include debt service, transfers 
or contingency

* % Spent is YTD Actuals divided by YE Budget. 

Operating Budget to Actual Comparison by Fund ^

City of Stayton

Year-end Financial Overview
FY 2018-2019

Revenues


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



